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Chairman 

ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED 
(Registration Number 128426) 
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020 

 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 
 

The directors of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited ("Atlantic Leaf" or "the Company") are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements, comprising the Group's statements of financial position as at 28 February 2020, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the 
financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
("IASB"), interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee ("IFRS IC" ), and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements issued by the 
Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements, the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991, Financial Reporting Act 2004, 
Mauritius Securities Act 2005 and SEM Listing Rules. 

 
The directors' responsibilities include: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The directors' are responsible for 
the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website and legislation in Jersey governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. The directors have made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a 
going concern and have no reason to believe the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP 
The annual financial statements of the Group have been approved by the Board of directors on 28 April 2020. 

Signed on behalf of the Board by: 

 
 
          
 

Paul Leaf-Wright 
Chief Executive Officer 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have the pleasure in presenting their report for the year ended 28 February 2020.

1. Nature of the business
On 1 March 2019, the company elected to enter into the UK-Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) regime and redomiciled the company from
Mauritius to Jersey and is now a public company limited by shares in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

Atlantic Leaf was established with the principal objective of investing in quality real estate assets that are income yielding with the potential
of capital appreciation.

The company is dual- listed with a primary listing on the Main Board of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange Limited (''JSE'') and a secondary
listing on the Official Market of the Stock Exchange of Mauritius Ltd (''SEM''). The Company converted its primary listing on the Official
Market of the SEM to a secondary listing effective from 1st March 2019.

There has been no change to the nature of the business.

2. Distributions
The board of directors of Atlantic Leaf are pleased to announce a distribution of 4.5 pence per share for the six months ended 28 February
2020, further to a distribution of 4.5 pence per share declared for the six months ended 31 August 2019.

3. Review of results
The operating results and state of affairs of the Group are fully set out in the attached consolidated financial statements.

4. Impact of Covid-19
Subsequent to year end, the UK government placed the UK into a state of lockdown as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Covid-19 has
impacted the lives of people and businesses globally and Atlantic Leaf is no exception.

The Company’s initial focus was ensuring the safety of its team. The Company’s business continuity plans have been enacted and are working
in ensuring a seamless continuation of operations despite the Company and its service providers working remotely. Whilst Atlantic Leaf does
not have any direct employees, its ability to operate relies on its Manco, Martial Eagle, continuing to function. All staff are working from
home and remain fully functional. Key service providers, such as the property manager who supports our rental collections, are also fully
operational.

Covid-19 has placed a strain on the business operations of many companies and as a property company, the ongoing ability of our tenants to
pay their rent has a natural impact on the cash flows of Atlantic Leaf.

Covid-19 has resulted in Atlantic Leaf performing further stress testing on its going concern assumptions and the cash position over the next
twelve months, given the potential for additional stresses on rent collections. As a prudent measure in response to the economic
environment, the Company has temporarily suspended its acquisition programme for additional investment properties. The Company has a
strong cash position of GBP 26 million at year end which includes the net proceeds from the sale of the DHL warehouse asset. The Company
also has GBP 1.6 million of undrawn available facilities. The Board are comfortable that there are sufficient resources to ensure that the
company can continue as a going concern.

The valuations supporting the Company’s property values were carried out by independent valuers for the year ended February 2020. As at
year- end there was no evidence of any adverse impact of Covid- 19 on these valuations. The Company generally has long leases and a
significant majority of the rent covering the period March to June 2020 was collected within two weeks of the due date. Since the year end,
the impact of Covid-19 cannot be reliably determined but a higher degree of risk and uncertainty exists in the current market environment.

Further details on this assumption can be found in the Events after the reporting period note 27.

5. Consideration of Brexit
The UK departed from the EU with effect from 31 January 2020. There will now be a transition period from 31 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. Until the terms of Brexit become clearer the exact outcome on the business, if any, cannot be determined.

5



ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT

6. Capital structure
There were no additional shares issued during the year and there are 188,976,628 share in circulation as at 28 February 2020. Refer to note
10 for details of shares issued. Refer to the integrated report for dealings in shares by directors.

7. Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name
Peter Bacon Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Paul Leaf-Wright Chief Executive Officer
Mark Pryce (Appointed 1 June 2019) Financial Director
Cleopatra Folkes Independent Non-Executive Director
Nicholas Winearls Independent Non-Executive Director
Laurence Rapp Non-Executive Director
Rudolf Pretorius Independent Non-Executive Director
Charles Butler (Appointed 9 July 2019) Independent Non-Executive Director
Warren Morton (Resigned 31 May 2019) Financial Director
Kesaven Moothoosamy (Resigned 31 May 2019) Non-Executive Director
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited 

 

 

Opinion  

 

We have audited the financial statements of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 28 February 

2020 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of 

Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial 

statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board. 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 28 February 2020 and of the Group’s profit for the 

year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;  

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. 

 

 
Basis for opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you 

where: 

 the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or 

 the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast 

significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period 

of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
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Key audit matters  

 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 

financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether 

or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation 

of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. 

 

Matter How we addressed this risk 

Investment property valuation (note 4) – £334.9m 

 

The Group’s accounting policy in note 3.3 of the financial 

statements states that investment property is initially 

measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value, 

with any change in the fair value recognised in profit or loss.  

 

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties, as 

detailed in note 4 of the financial statements, is inherently 

subjective and involves significant estimates and 

assumptions made by the directors and independent 

external valuers (the ‘valuers’), particularly in relation to: 

the selection of valuation models; the inputs to those 

models; and the market conditions prevailing at the end of 

the Group's accounting period. 

 

The property valuations are prepared by the valuers in 

accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 

(RICS) Valuation Standards (the ‘Red Book’) and take into 

account property-specific information, such as current 

tenancy agreements and rental income. Assumptions made 

for these purposes by the directors and valuers include 

yields and estimated market rentals, which are influenced 

by prevailing market yields and comparable market 

transactions. 

 

The significance of these estimates and assumptions 

warrants specific audit focus, particularly given small 

changes in individual property valuation estimates and 

assumptions, when aggregated, may have a material 

impact on the financial statements. 

 

 

We adopted a substantive audit approach to address the 

valuation assertion for investment properties. Our key 

audit procedures included: 

 

 Agreeing the valuation of all investment 

properties to the valuation reports prepared by 

the valuers; 

 Agreeing the terms of engagement and basis of 

preparation for a sample of valuation reports, 

through interviews with the four valuers; 

 Assessing the competence, capabilities and 

objectivity of the valuers;  

 Recalculating key valuation workings; 

 Engaging our own expert to evaluate the 

appropriateness of the yield rates used in the 

valuations and evaluating their work; 

 Evaluating the key assumptions used in the 

valuations, including the reasonableness of 

rental income assumptions by comparing to 2019 

actual results and comparing market rents and 

discount rates used to publicly available industry 

data; 

 Assessing whether the directors have properly 

considered the relevance of valuation 

assumptions applicable at year-end; and 

 Assessing the adequacy of disclosures with 

regards to the investment property portfolio in 

the financial statements. 
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Matter Audit response 

COVID-19 Outbreak  (Going concern and subsequent 

event) 

 

Since the balance sheet date there has been a global 

pandemic from the outbreak of COVID-19. The potential 

impact of COVID-19 became significant in March 2020 and 

is causing widespread disruption to normal patterns of 

business activity across the world, including the UK. 

 

The directors’ consideration of the impact on the financial 

statements is disclosed in the Director’s Report on page 5 

and going concern assessment in note 27. Whilst the 

situation is still evolving, based on the information 

available at this point in time, the directors have assessed 

the impact of COVID-19 on the business and have 

concluded that adopting the going concern basis of 

preparation is appropriate.  

 

As per note 27 to the financial statements, the directors 

have also concluded that COVID-19 is a non-adjusting post 

balance sheet event. 

 

 

 

We assessed the directors’ conclusion that the matter be 

treated as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and 

that the adoption of the going concern basis for 

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. We 

considered: 

  

 The timing of the development of the outbreak 

across the world and in the UK, where the 

Group’s investment properties are located; and 

 How the financial statements and business 

operations of the Group might be impacted by 

the disruption. 

 

In forming our conclusions over going concern, we 

evaluated how the directors’ going concern assessment 

considered the impacts arising from COVID-19 by assessing: 

 

 How the directors’ going concern assessment 

considered the impacts arising from COVID-19; 

 How simulation techniques, including the effect 

of COVID-19 based on a “most-likely” (base case) 

scenario and a “stress tested scenario” impacts 

the directors’ going concern assessment;  

 The reasonableness of key assumptions in the 

“base case” and the “stress tested scenario”; 

 The adequacy and appropriateness of the 

directors’ disclosure in respect of COVID-19 

implications, particularly events after the 

reporting period and going concern; and 

 Communications from the main funder to the 

directors to determine the likely response in the 

event of breach by the Group of loan to value 

(“LTV”) covenants. 
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Our application of materiality 

 

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. 

These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and 

extent of our audit procedures on the Group financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of 

misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole. Based on our professional judgement, we 

determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows: 

 

  

Overall  materiality £5,753,000  

How we determined it 1.5% of the Group’s total assets 

Rationale for benchmark applied We established materiality based on total assets, which is considered appropriate 

given the nature of the Group’s core business and investors will mostly be 

interested in the fair value of the Group’s assets. 

Performance materiality £4,027,000 

Reporting threshold £173,000 

 

 

An overview of the scope of our audit 

 

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial 

statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements such as making assumptions on 

significant accounting estimates. 

 

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group, the structure of the Group and 

the industry in which it operates. We considered the risk of acts by the Group which were contrary to the applicable laws 

and regulations including fraud. We designed our audit procedures to respond to those identified risks, including non-

compliance with laws and regulations (irregularities) that are material to the financial statements.  

 

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements, including, 

but not limited to, the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed 

sufficient work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. We used the outputs of a risk assessment, 

our understanding of the Group’s accounting processes and controls and its environment and considered qualitative factors 

in order to ensure that we obtained sufficient coverage across all financial statement line items. 

 

Our tests included, but were not limited to, obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 

sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused 

by irregularities including fraud or error, review of minutes of directors’ meetings in the year and enquiries of management.  

 

The risks of material misstatement, including due to fraud, that had the greatest effect on our audit are discussed under “Key 

audit matters” within this report. 

 

Our group audit scope included an audit of the Group financial statements of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited. Based on our 

risk assessment, all entities within the Group were subject to full scope audit and was performed by the Group audit team. 

  

At the Group level we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion 

that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information. 
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Other information   

 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 

annual report and financial statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion 

on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our 

report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 

misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 

material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires 

us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Group, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 

received from branches not visited by us; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

Responsibilities of Directors 

 

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 4, the directors are responsible for the 

preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control 

as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting 

Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

  

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Use of the audit report 

 

This report is made solely to the Group’s members as a body in accordance with Article 113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 

1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Group’s members those matters we are required 

to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 

assume responsibility to anyone other than the Group and the Group’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, 

or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

Richard Metcalfe 

for and on behalf of Mazars LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

  

Tower Bridge House 

St Katharine’s Way 

London 

E1W 1DD 

 

Date: 28 April 2020 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Shareholders of Atlantic Leaf Property Investments Limited 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Opinion  

 

We have audited the consolidated annual financial statements of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited (the group) set out on 

pages 18 to 55, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 28 February 2020, and the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity 

and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

 

In our opinion, the consolidated annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 

position of the group as at 28 February 2020, and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for 

the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Annual Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the 

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), 

parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors 

(Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing 

audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in 

accordance with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in 

South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board 

for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 

International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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Key Audit Matters  

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 

consolidated annual financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 

of the consolidated annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters.  

 

The key audit matters relate to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements. 

 

Matter Audit response 

Valuation of investment properties (note 4) 

 

The Group’s accounting policy in note 3.3 of the 

financial statements states that investment property is 

initially measured at cost and subsequently measured 

at fair value with any change in the fair value 

recognised in profit or loss.  

 

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties, as 

detailed in note 4 of the financial statements, is 

inherently subjective and involves significant estimates 

and assumptions made by the directors and 

independent external valuers, particularly in relation to: 

the selection of valuation models; the inputs to those 

models; and current market conditions prevailing at the 

end of the Group's accounting period. 

 

The property valuations are prepared in accordance 

with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 

‘Valuation – Professional Standards, the 2012 Edition’ 

(the “Red Book”) and take into account property-

specific information, such as current tenancy 

agreements and rental income. Assumptions made for 

these purposes by directors and valuers include yields 

and estimated market rentals, which are influenced by 

prevailing market yields and comparable market 

transactions. 

 

The significance of the estimates and judgements 

involved, including that only a slight percentage 

difference in individual property valuations, when 

aggregated, could result in a material misstatement, 

warrants specific audit focus. 

 

 

 

We adopted a substantive audit approach to address 

the valuation assertion for investment properties. Our 

key audit procedures included: 

 

 agreeing the valuation of all investment 

properties to the valuation reports prepared 

by independent external valuers  appointed 

by the directors; 

 agreeing the terms of engagement and basis 

of preparation of selected sampled externally 

prepared property valuation reports, through 

interviews with the four independent external 

valuers; 

 recalculating key valuation workings; 

 assessing the competence, capabilities and 

objectivity of the appointed management 

experts;  

 engaging our own auditor’s expert to evaluate 

the appropriateness of the yield rates used in 

the valuations; 

 reviewing the conclusions of our own 

auditor’s expert; 

 evaluating the key assumptions used in the 

external valuations, including comparing the 

rental income used in the valuation 

calculations to actual results and comparing 

discount rates used to publicly available 

industry data; 

 assessing whether the directors have 

properly considered the relevance of 

valuation assumptions applicable at year-

end; and 

 assessing the adequacy of disclosures with 

regards to the investment property portfolio in 

the financial statements. 

Having performed our audit procedures and evaluated 

the outcomes we concluded that our audit procedures 

appropriately address the key audit matter. 
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Matter Audit response 

COVID-19 Outbreak  (Going concern and 

subsequent event) 

 

Subsequent to the year-end, the World Health 

Organisation has declared the outbreak of COVID-19 

as a global pandemic. Subsequently the potential 

impact of COVID-19 became significant and the 

enforced lockdown is causing widespread disruption to 

normal patterns of business activity across the world, 

including the UK. This has an impact on the level of 

business activity around the world, and possibly the 

ability of companies to operate as a going concern. 

 

The directors’ consideration of the impact on the 

financial statements are disclosed in the Director’s 

Report on pages 5 & 6 and going concern assessment 

on pages 54 & 55. Whilst the situation is still evolving, 

based on the information currently available, the 

directors have assessed the impact of COVID-19 on 

the business and have concluded that adopting the 

going concern basis of preparation is appropriate.  

 

As per note 27 to the financial statements, the directors 

have also concluded that COVID-19 is a non-adjusting 

post balance sheet event.  

 

 

 

We assessed the directors’ conclusion that the matter 

be treated as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event 

and that the adoption of the going concern basis for 

preparation of the financial statements was 

appropriate. We inspected and assessed:  

 the timeline of the outbreak across the world 

and in the UK, where the investment 

properties of the company are located; 

 how the financial statements and business 

operations of the Group might be impacted by 

the disruption; 

 how the directors’ going concern assessment 

considered the impacts arising from COVID-

19; 

 how  simulation techniques including the 

effect of COVID-19 based on a “most-likely” 

(base case) scenario and a “stress tested 

scenario” impacts the directors’ going 

concern assessment;  

 the reasonableness of key assumptions in 

the “base case” forecast and the “reverse 

stress tested scenario” forecast; 

 the adequacy and appropriateness of the 

directors’ disclosure in respect of COVID-19 

implications, in particular disclosures within 

principal risks & uncertainties, post balance 

sheet events and going concern; and 

 communications from the funders to 

determine the likely response in the event of 

breach by the company of loan to value 

(“LTV”) covenants. 

 

Having performed our audit procedures and evaluated 

the outcomes we concluded that our audit procedures 

appropriately address the key audit matter. 

 

 

 

Other Information   

 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the in Directors’ Report, the Audit 

and Risk Committee’s Report and the Company Secretary’s Certificate which we obtained prior to the date of this report, 

and the Integrated Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other information does 

not include the consolidated annual financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated annual 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on 

the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard. 
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements 

 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated annual financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the directors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the consolidated annual financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated annual financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated annual financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Group’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the directors.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 

annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the group to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated annual financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 

within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements. We are responsible for 

the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 

on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 

of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

 

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that Mazars 

has been the auditor of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited for four years.  

 
Mazars  

Registered Auditors 

Partner: Duncan Dollman 

Registered Auditor 

28 April 2020 

Cape Town 

 



ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements as at 28 February 2020

Statement of Financial Position
Figures in GBP Notes 2020 2019

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investment properties 4  350,866,859  328,910,000
Listed investments 6  2,926,786  3,617,612
Other receivables 8  154,605  163,661

 353,948,250  332,691,273
Current Assets
Tax receivable 18  167,538   -  
Trade and other receivables 8  2,651,435  3,401,513
Cash and cash equivalents 9  26,157,994  12,597,553

 28,976,967  15,999,066

Assets held for sale   -   23,000,356

Total Assets  382,925,217  371,690,695

Equity and Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 10  198,467,699  198,467,699
Cash flow hedge reserve 7  (3,247,138)  (1,124,297)
Retained earnings/ (accumulated loss)  1,239,063  (2,063,544)
Total equity  196,459,624  195,279,858

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 11  155,907,988  163,850,876
Lease liability 12  15,308,632   -  

 171,216,620  163,850,876

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13  4,647,559  4,441,201
Interest bearing borrowings 11  6,537,330  6,296,381
Lease liability 12  633,215   -  
Tax payable 18   -   613,862
Derivative financial instruments 7  3,430,869  1,208,517

 15,248,973  12,559,961
Total Equity and Liabilities  382,925,217  371,690,695
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Figures in GBP Notes 2020 2019

Rental revenue  26,154,412  24,111,358
Straight-line lease income 16  1,837,949  1,520,500
Tenant recoveries  1,249,788  1,228,146
Revenue  29,242,149  26,860,004
Property operating expenses  (1,773,277)  (2,373,275)
Other operating expenditure  (3,128,428)  (2,818,787)
Operating income 14  24,340,444  21,667,942
Other income   -   140,560
Investment income 15  920,710  435,945
Net profit on disposal of investment property, subsidiary and joint venture  2,889,617  249,724
Profit on disposal of listed investment 6   -   128,344
(Loss)/Profit on foreign exchange  (10,281)  100,252
Impairment of APIL loan 8  (600,000)   -  
Fair value adjustments 16  (36,445)  (9,117,807)
Finance costs 17  (6,831,347)  (5,592,367)
Equity accounted profit (net of taxation)   -   2,663,929
Profit before taxation  20,672,698  10,676,522
Taxation 18  (78,730)  (1,493,442)
Profit for the year  20,593,968  9,183,080

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value movement on interest rate swaps 7  (2,122,841)  (613,032)
Items reclassified through profit or loss   -   (15,586)
Total other comprehensive income  (2,122,841)  (628,618)

Total comprehensive income for the year  18,471,127  8,554,462

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent  20,593,968  9,183,080

 20,593,968  9,183,080
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent  18,471,127  8,554,462

 18,471,127  8,554,462

Basic and diluted earnings per share (GBP pence) 19  10.90  4.86
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in GBP  Notes  Stated capital
 Cash flow

hedge reserve
 Retained
earnings  Total

Group
Balance at 1 March 2018  198,467,699  (495,679)  6,233,714  204,205,734
Profit for the year   -    -   9,167,494  9,167,494
Other comprehensive income 7   -   (613,032)   -   (613,032)
Dividends 21.1   -    -   (17,480,338)  (17,480,338)
Items reclassified through profit or loss  (15,586)  15,586   -  
Balance at 28 February 2019  198,467,699  (1,124,297)  (2,063,544)  195,279,858
Profit for the year   -    -   20,593,968  20,593,968
Other comprehensive income 7   -   (2,122,841)   -   (2,122,841)
Dividends 21.1   -    -   (17,291,361)  (17,291,361)
Balance at 28 February 2020  198,467,699  (3,247,138)  1,239,063  196,459,624
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Statement of Cash Flows  Group
Figures in GBP Notes 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations  21  22,733,319  20,742,469
Interest received  91,353  146,508
Interest paid  (6,390,239)  (4,901,062)
Tax paid  (860,130)  (1,722,044)
Net cash generated from operating activities  15,574,303  14,265,871

Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of joint venture  5  22,626,839   -  
Acquisition of investment properties  4  (40,457,852)  (15,969,982)
Sale of investment property  4  6,899,548  1,182,724
Sale of listed investments  6   -   3,345,084
Disposal of subsidiary 21.3  19,846,100
Dividends received  842,924  4,700,743
Net cash generated by/(utilised in) investing activities  9,757,559  (6,741,431)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings  21.2  17,764,638  21,808,033
Repayment of borrowings  21.2  (12,160,883)  (5,973,289)
Lease liabilities repaid 12  (73,534)   -  
Dividends paid  21.1  (17,291,361)  (17,480,338)
Net cash utilised in financing activities  (11,761,140)  (1,645,594)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  13,570,722  5,878,846
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  12,597,553  6,618,455
Effects of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents  (10,281)  100,252
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9  26,157,994  12,597,553
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Accounting Policies

1. General information

Atlantic Leaf and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) hold a portfolio of investment properties in the United Kingdom. The
principal activity of the Group is to invest in high quality, investment grade real estate assets and companies which deliver suitable returns for
investors through both income and capital growth.

The Company was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius as a public company limited by shares in accordance with the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001. On 1 March 2019, the company elected to enter into the UK-REIT regime and redomiciled the company from Mauritius
to Jersey and is now a public company limited by shares in accordance with the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.

The Company has primary listings on the Main Board of the JSE and a secondary listing on the Official Market of the SEM.

The Company is managed by Martial Eagle Limited, a company registered in Mauritius.

The subsidiaries derive rental income from investment properties.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee ("IFRS IC"), and the Financial
Reporting Pronouncements issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements, the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991, Financial Reporting Act 2004, Mauritius Securities Act 2005 and SEM Listing Rules.

Income and cash flow statement
The Group has elected to present a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and presents its expenses by nature. The
Group reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect method. Interest received and interest paid is presented within
operating cash flows. The acquisitions of investment properties are disclosed as cash flows from investing activities because this most
appropriately reflects the Group’s business activities.

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, applying a historical cost convention, except for the measurement of
investment properties, investments and derivative financial instruments that have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions are changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.1.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated annual financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Although the estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and judgements of facts at the
reporting date, the actual outcome may differ from those estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and any future periods.
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Accounting Policies

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(i) Business combination versus asset acquisition
The directors consider various factors to determine whether a property acquisition constitutes the acquisition of a business as defined in IFRS
3 or an acquisition of property. A business is defined as an integrated set of activities and assets capable of being conducted and managed to
provide returns in the form of dividends, lower cost or other economic benefits directly to investors or other owners. A business consists of
inputs and processes, which when applied together create outputs.

Inputs are determined to be the properties or tenants as these are “an economic resource that creates, or has the ability to create, outputs”.

Processes include (but are not limited) to lease management, selection of tenants, marketing decisions, investment decisions, billing and
collection of rent as these represent “any system, standard, protocol, convention or rule that when applied to the input creates or has the
ability to create outputs”.

Properties are typically bought independent of processes or business operations. As such these would be determined to be an acquisition of
property, as opposed to a business as defined and would thus be accounted for in terms of IAS 40, Investment Property. Where the directors
have acquired the associated business processes along with the inputs such as property, these are accounted for in terms of IFRS 3, Business
Combinations.

(ii) Determination of functional currency
The primary objective of the Group is to generate returns and capital growth in Pound Sterling ("GBP") for the benefit of its shareholders. The
assets and liabilities of the Group and the cash flows are predominantly GBP denominated and GBP is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s performance is evaluated in GBP. Management, therefore considers GBP as the
currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

(iii) Agent or Principal - Municipal cost recoveries
The substance of the agreements and contracts with each tenant have been assessed in the determination of the Group acting as the Agent
or the Principal and the implications of the decision in terms of revenue recognition. The Group has considered who has the primary
responsibility to provide the services to the tenants. Given the tenants contract with the Group, the Group as such bears the primary
responsibility to provide services and therefore has determined that it is acting as the Principal in providing services to the tenants. When the
Group satisfies the performance obligation, the Group recognises revenue as the gross amount of consideration it expects to be entitled in
exchange for the services.

(iv) Presentation of consolidated financial statements
Atlantic Leaf owns 100% of its subsidiaries and therefore the Directors have determined that the disclosure of separate holding company
accounts does not offer significant additional information to the users of the financial statements.

(v) Leases
The Group is party to a number of leasing contracts entered into on leasehold properties and therefore as a consequence, the Group is party
to a corresponding head lease agreement. The Group is a lessee of the underlying land and accordingly recognises a right-of-use asset in
terms of accounting policy 3.4. All subleases are classified as operating leases as the terms of the subleases are not for the major part of the
life of the right-of-use assets.

(vi) Impact of Covid-19
Refer to note 27 for consideration of the impact of Covid-19.
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Accounting Policies

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Fair value of financial instruments
Refer to note 24 for information on valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing assets and liabilities.

(ii) Fair value of investment properties
Refer to note 4 for information on valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing investment properties.

(iii) Taxes
The subsidiaries are subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
subsidiaries recognise liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

3.2 Business combinations
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. Control is assumed when the Group:

• has the power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to the variable returns;
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is accounted for at fair value. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred at the acquisition date over the fair value of the identifiable net asset acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total consideration transferred is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
regarded as a bargain purchase and is recognised directly in the income statement. Non-controlling interests are measured at acquisition
date at either fair value or at the non- controlling interests share of identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is on a
transaction by transaction basis as determined by the directors.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income and expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between members of the group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins on the acquisition date, when the entity has control over the subsidiary, and ceases when the Company
loses control over the entity. Income and expenses of the acquired subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date of control till the date when the control ceases. These are attributable to both the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
Where the group loses control, an amount shall be included in profit or loss as calculated for the difference in aggregate fair value of
consideration and the previous carrying amount of any assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests as well as any goodwill. Any amounts
recognised previously in other comprehensive income should be accounted as if there was a direct disposal, and thus reclassified to profit
and loss when permitted.
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Accounting Policies

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at
cost including transaction costs.

Following initial recognition the Group' share of profit and loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture is separately presented
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Dividend income from the investment will reduce the carrying amount.

At the date the joint venture is reclassified as an asset held for sale it is no longer accounted for under the equity method. Dividends received
following reclassification to asset held for sale but prior to disposal are recognised as dividend income. Gains or losses arising on disposal of
the joint venture are recognised in the profit and loss, measured as the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amount.

3.3 Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs. Refer to note 4.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value and changes in fair values are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed. Gains or losses arising on disposal of the investment property are
recognised in profit and loss, measured as the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amount.

The right of use asset at the initial date of recognition is recognised at cost. The cost comprises of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. Subsequent
to initial measurement, the right of use asset is carried at fair value and fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

3.4 Leases
The Group has applied IFRS 16 modified retrospective approach for the financial year and as such has not restated comparative information
and therefore the comparatives are presented under IAS 17. The details of the accounting policies under both IAS 17 and IFRS 16 are
presented separately below.

(i) Lessor
The Group is party to numerous leasing contracts as lessor of property. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership. All of the Group’s leases are operating leases.

Contractual rental income relating to investment properties held directly by the Group is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
from acquisition date of such investment property to the end of the relevant lease term. Where leases are terminated the lease cancellation
amount is recognised immediately as revenue. Any direct costs incurred in obtaining the lease are capitilised to the carrying value of the
asset, and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(ii) Lessee
The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangement which it is lessee. All lease contracts relate to head lease agreements
where the Group is a lessee of the underlying land. The Group accounts for these leases in terms of the new IFRS 16 standard recognising a
right of use asset and a corresponding lease liability.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of future lease payments not yet paid, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if readily determined, otherwise at the group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Accounting Policies

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
• Fixed lease payments, less any lease incentive receivable;
• Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under the residual guarantees; and
• The exercise price of purchase options, if reasonably certain the group will exercise these before the options terminate.

After initial recognition, lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount for accrued interest on the lease liability, reducing the
carrying amount by any lease payments, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any changes from any reassessments, lease
modifications or revision of fixed lease payments. The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset) whenever:

• The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstance resulting in a change in the assessment of
exercise or purchase options;

• The variable lease payments change due to change in index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guarantee residual
value. The revised payments will be discounted using the unchanged discount rate, unless these are changes are due to a change in
floating interest, in which case a revised rate is used; and

• A lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease. The lease liability is remeasured
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate from the date
of modification.

The Group has used several practical expedients when applying the modified retrospective approach to previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17:

• A single discount rate has been applied to a portfolio of leases as they have reasonably similar characteristics;
• Initial direct costs have been excluded from the measurement of the right of use asset at the date of the initial application;
• The definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 will continue to be applied to those leases entered before 1 March 2019. The
definition per IFRS 16 will be used for leases entered after 1 March 2019, however the change in definition does not significantly
change the scope of the contracts that meet the definition of a lease to the Group.

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 16 the head leases that the Group is party to were classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Lease payments
were recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis was more representative of the
time pattern of the Group’s benefit. The lease payments were recognised in property expenses.

3.5 Financial instruments
Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into the following categories:

• financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (designated at fair value through profit or loss in the prior
year under IAS 39) and

• financial assets measured at amortised cost (classified as loans and receivables in the prior year under IAS 39)

The Group's financial assets are classified as follows:
• Listed investments are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9. The Group invests in listed shares with
a view to profiting from their total return in the form of dividends and fair value. In the prior year, these investments were
designated at fair value through profit or loss under IAS 39;

• Loans receivable are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables in the prior year under IAS 39);
• Trade and other receivables are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables in the prior year
under IAS 39;

• Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables in the
prior year under IAS 39; and

• Deposits paid that represent a contractual right to cash are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and
receivables in the prior year under IAS 39). Deposits paid that do not represent a contractual right to cash are presented separately
from financial instruments.
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Accounting Policies

Impairment – trade receivables
The impairment model under IFRS 9 requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses (“ECL”) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39.

The Group applies a simplified approach and measures the expected impairment loss as lifetime expected credit losses. Under this approach,
historical credit losses over a set period up to the reporting date, and forward- looking macroeconomic factors, are considered as inputs.
These are used to determine ECLs that result from default events that are possible over the total expected lifetime of the receivables. These
receivables contained no financing component.

Utilities: Includes gas, water and electricity costs recharged to tenants. The lifetime expected credit loss is calculated using a provision matrix
that calculates the impairment loss based on the default rate percentage applied to the trade receivables.

The period of historical credit losses considered is the 12-months up to the reporting date. This period is judged to be most appropriate for
estimation of recent payment trends. Historical recovery of these receivables is broken down into the following categories: 0-30 days, 31-60
days, 61-180 days, 181-360 days, and >365 days. The default rate for each recovery period is calculated as the historical default loss divided
by the amount outstanding at the end of each time bucket. The historical default rates are then adjusted by any applicable forward-looking
information and these expected default rates are subsequently applied to receivables.

Rental Receivables: A large proportion of rental earned by Atlantic Leaf is payable quarterly in advance. Atlantic Leaf considers any rental that
has not been received within 90 days to be fully impaired.

Impairment – Other receivables
The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a loan has not increased significantly since initial recognition, then the loss
allowance for that loan is measured at 12 month expected credit losses (12 month ECL).

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a loan. In contrast,
12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a loan that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in other words, whether or not there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group considers whether there has been a significant increase in the risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition rather than at evidence of a loan being credit impaired at the reporting date or of an actual default occurring.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a loan has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring as at the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward- looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This information includes budgets and forecasts and the financial health of the
entity, as well as the future prospects of the property industry.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the credit risk on a loan is always presumed to have increased significantly since initial
recognition if the contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers that a default event has occurred if there is either a breach of financial covenants by the borrower, or if internal or
external information indicates that the borrower is unlikely to pay its creditors in full (without taking collateral into account).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a loan is more than 90 days past due.

The group writes off a loan when there is information indicating that the borrower is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the borrower has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (held- for- trading) or other liabilities at
amortised cost. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified as follows:
• Interest bearing borrowings are classified as other financial liabilities at amortised cost;
• Derivatives comprising interest rate swaps are held-for-trading financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The Group applies hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS 9; and

• Trade and other payables are classified as other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Interest rate swaps
The Group enters into interest swap agreements, some of which are designated as cash flow hedges. For interest rate swap agreements not
designated as cashflow hedges any fair value movements are recognised in the profit and loss through fair value in accordance with IFRS 9.

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the economic relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items
including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedged items.
The group documents its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The following accounting policy applies for interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges:

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements that are designated and qualify as cash flows hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion (if any) is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods
when the related interest payment is recognised in profit and loss.

When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Note 7 sets out the details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

3.6 Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.7 Taxation
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operate and generate taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity through other comprehensive income is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss.

The Group periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and estimate payables where appropriate.
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3.8 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when there is a transfer of control of a promised product or service to a customer. Revenue is measured based on
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes any amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest method. Interest
income has been disclosed in investment income.

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight- line basis over the lease term. When the Group provides incentives to its
tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date the Group's or Company's right to receive payment is
established, which in the case of quoted securities is usually the ex-dividend date. Dividend income has been disclosed in investment income.

Tenant recoveries
Tenant recoveries are recognised on a contractual basis in terms of the invoice date for the supply services such as utilities to the tenants.
The Group bears the primary responsibility to provide such services over time to the tenants based on the contract that each tenant has with
the Group as landlord.

3.9 Expense recognition
All expenses are accounted for in profit or loss on an accrual basis.

Property expenses
Property expenses comprise all direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from investment property during the
period. Where costs relating to obtaining a new lease have been capitalised, these are recognised as an expense over the lease term.

Interest expense
Interest expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method.
This includes interest from the headleases recognised as lease liability (previously recognised accrued within property expenses).

3.10 Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transaction.

3.11 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements on the date which the
dividend is due to be paid to the Group's shareholders, as well as directly in equity.
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3.12 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Adoption of new and revised pronouncements
In the current year, the Group has adopted all new and revised IFRSs as issued by the IASB and the IFRS Interpretations Committee that are
relevant to its operations and effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 28 February 2020. The adoption of these new and revised
IFRSs has not resulted in changes to the Group's accounting policies.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2020, the following IFRSs were adopted:

Details of Standard Details Impact
IFRS 16 (Leases) Effective
as from 1 January 2019

New standard that introduces a single accounting
model for lessees, while the accounting for lessors is
left largely unchanged from its predecessor (IAS 17
Leases). Lessee will be required to recognise “Right to
use assets”

The adoption of IFRS 16 has resulted in the recognition
of a lease liability and a corresponding right of use asset.
The model reflects that, at the start of the lease, the
lessee obtains the right to use an asset for a period of
time and has an obligation to pay for that right.

A small number of leasing contracts entered into are
leasehold properties and therefore as a consequence,
the Group is party to a corresponding head lease
agreement. The Group is a lessee of the underlying land
and will account for these leases in terms of the new
IFRS 16 standard and a right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability has been recognized from 1
March 2019.

The lease right to use assets are amortised over their
useful lives. The fair value of the right of use asset is
considered to be equal to the lease liability, as such fair
value movements are recognised in line with the
amortisation of the lease liability. Management has
performed a preliminary analysis, and based on
assumptions as at 1 March 2019, has determined the
effect to be as follows, given the current operating
headleases within the portfolio:

Right to Use Asset: GBP 16 million
Lease Liabilities: GBP 16 million
The statement of comprehensive income was decreased
by £53,000, this is a result of an interest expense being
recognised and the movement in the fair value of the
right of use asset.

Basic and diluted EPS was decreased by 0.02 (GBP
pence).

Management has assessed the subleases and
determined that none of these account for major part of
the underlying headlease.

In adopting this standard the Group applied the
modified retrospective approach. The present value of
the lease liabilities has been determined at the
company’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 March
2019.
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New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not applied the following new, revised or amended pronouncements that have been issued as they are not yet effective for
the financial year beginning 1 March 2020 (the list does not include information about new requirements that affect interim financial
reporting or first-time adopters of IFRS since they are not relevant to the Group). The Board anticipates that the new standards, amendments
and interpretations will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements when they become effective.

Details of Standard Details Impact
Amendments to IFRS 3 –
Definition of a business
Effective as from 1 January
2020

The amendment clarifies that while a business has
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated
set of activities and assets to qualify as a business. To
be considered a business an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

Currently the Group has determined that properties are
typically bought independent of processes or business
operations. As such these would be determined to be an
acquisition of property, as opposed to a business as
defined and would thus be accounted for in terms of IAS
40, Investment Property. Where the directors have
acquired the associated business processes along with
the inputs such as property, these are accounted for in
terms of IFRS 3, Business Combinations.

The amendment introduces an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.

The amendment will be applied prospectively to all
business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is after the first annual reporting
period. The Group will have to apply this on a case by
case basis, as the simplified concentration test can be
applied on a transaction-by-transaction basis. The new
definition and simplified test, would lead to a similar
determination of business combination vs asset
acquisition which is currently being applied, particularly
given the Group’s nature of purchasing investment
property.

As such the adoption of this amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8 – Definition of
material Effective as from 1
January 2020

The amendment is intended to make the definition of
material in IAS 1 easier to understand, without
intending to alter the underlying concept of
materiality. The definition in IAS has been replaced by
a reference to the definition of material in IAS 1.

Given the concept of materiality hasn’t changed, the
adoption of this amendment is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group, or its assessment of
disclosure from a materiality perspective.

The threshold for materiality influencing user has
been changed from “could influence” to “could
reasonably be expected to influence”.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on the foreseeable future transactions.
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4. Investment properties

Investment properties at fair value  350,866,859  328,910,000

Movement for the year
At beginning of the year  328,910,000  319,404,723
Purchase of investment properties (including related transaction costs)  40,457,852  15,969,982
Disposal of investment properties  (6,884,093)  (933,000)
Disposal of subsidiary  (29,247,491)   -  
Changes in fair value (Note 16)  1,688,732  (5,531,705)
Balance at end of year  334,925,000  328,910,000

Right of use asset - land leased
IFRS 16 Right of use asset recognised  16,071,119   -  
Change in fair value (Note 16)  (129,260)   -  
Balance at end of year  15,941,859   -  

Valuation assumptions
Independent valuations are carried out by Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors ("RICS") regulated external valuers, who have recent
experience in the location and category of the investment properties being valued and on the basis of ‘Market Value’, in accordance with the
current Practice Statements contained within the RICS ‘Valuation – Professional Standards, the 2012 Edition’ (the “Red Book”). This is an
internationally accepted basis of valuation.

In accordance with RICS, the Investment Method is used to value properties which are income producing future cash flows through the
letting of properties. Conventionally, investment value is a product of rent and yield. Each of these elements is derived using comparison
techniques within the relevant property markets and sectors.

Discounted cash flow ("DCF") techniques are also frequently used in the appraisal of investment property and again comparison is used to
derive values for many of the key inputs in the calculation including not only rent and yield but also the growth rate, discount rate, costs and
disposal price.

All valuations are reviewed by management semi annually, taking into account market forces such as yield movement, occupier and investor
sentiment, supply and demand as well as other valuation principles to establish whether there is likely to be a material change in asset
values. The reviews are carried out by management and approved by the Board of Directors. An external desktop valuation, in accordance
with RICS standards, is carried out at least every 12 months. A full Red Book valuation is done on all of the properties every 3 years. Changes
to key inputs may result in a valuation at year end that differs from the last external valuation.

All of the investment properties have been pledged to secure the existing borrowings of GBP 161.4 million (2019 : GBP 168.9 million). Refer
to note 11.

Refer to the supplementary schedules for details of investment properties and rentals.

The average forward yield (cap rate) on investment properties at 28 February 2020 is 7.05% (2019 : 7.24%).

For information about fair value adjustments using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), refer to note 24 for fair value classification.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement are capitalisation rate and vacancy levels, categorised within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy of the Group's property portfolio together with the impact of significant movements in these inputs on the fair
value measurement.
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The effect of a change in capitalisation rate of 50 basis points is detailed in the table below:

Country Category Valuation Range of
unobservable

inputs (cap
rates)

Effect of a
change in

capitalisation
rate

GBP GBP
UK Retail Warehouse  4,350,000 6.00% - 7.00%  387,431
UK Industrial  258,940,000 5.60% - 14.05%  21,151,510
UK Office  71,635,000 2.70% - 9.10%  6,432,607

 334,925,000  27,971,548

The effect of a change in vacancy level for 10% decrease on the current portfolio of investment property is detailed in the table below :

Country Category Valuation Existing
vacancy rate

Effect of a
change in

vacancy level
GBP GBP

UK Retail Warehouse  4,350,000 0.00%  157,500
UK Industrial  258,940,000 0.30%  9,873,500
UK Office  71,635,000 29.40%  1,723,000

 334,925,000  11,754,000

The current portfolio has an existing vacancy rate as at 28 February 2020 of 2.7% (2019: 3.0%) based on GLA (sq ft).

Future rent receivable
Future minimum rent receivable due as follows:
- 1 year  24,465,075  24,648,261
- 2 years  24,450,066  24,368,295
- 3 years  23,888,573  24,288,529
- 4 years  21,014,982  23,769,018
- 5 years  20,322,111  21,491,841
- later than 5 years  98,276,795  108,601,351
Total  212,417,602  227,167,295

The Group earns rental income by leasing its investment properties to tenants under non- cancellable operating leases, all rental income
generated in the year is from the leasing of investment properties. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for contracts as operating leases.
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5. Investment in joint venture

Entity name Country incorporated Percentage holding Carrying value of investment
2020 2019

LMP Retail Warehouse JV Property
Unit Trust Guernsey 0.00% 45.02%   -   23,000,356

On 23 April 2019 the Group disposed of its 45.02% holding in LMP Retail Warehouse JV Property Unit Trust, the Group recognised a loss on
sale of its interest in the joint venture of GBP 1,390,704.

At beginning of the year  23,000,356  25,766,250
Share of profit   -   2,663,929
Disposals  (24,017,569)   -  
Change in fair value  1,017,213  (1,017,213)
Distributions received   -   (4,412,610)
Balance at end of year   -   23,000,356

6. Listed investments

Listed security investments are categorised as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. The fair values of the listed
security investments are determined based on quoted prices in active markets. The list of investments are provided below:

The following table indicates the Group’s investment holdings by market value as at year end:
 Number of ordinary shares  Fair value

Name of investee Company 2020 2019 2020 2019
Hammerson Plc  94,109  94,109  196,312  359,214
Klepierre  10,494  10,494  243,928  276,328
Land Securities Group Plc  117,842  117,842  983,509  1,060,107
British Land Company Limited  179,678  179,678  900,187  1,085,614
Unibail Rodamco  5,228  5,228  490,227  636,959
Wereldhave NV  9,060  9,060  112,623  199,390

 2,926,786  3,617,612

Balance at the beginning of year  3,617,612  7,154,208
Disposals   -   (3,345,084)
Profit on disposal   -   128,344
Fair value adjustments  (690,826)  (319,856)
Balance at end of year  2,926,786  3,617,612
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7. Derivative financial instruments

In accordance with the terms of the borrowing arrangements and group policy, the subsidiaries have entered into interest rate swap
agreements. The interest rate swap agreements are entered into by the borrowing entities to convert the borrowings from floating to fixed
interest rates and are used to manage the interest rate profile of financial liabilities and eliminate future exposure to interest rate
fluctuations. It is the Group’s policy that no economic trading in derivatives is undertaken.

The following tables set out the interest rate swap agreements at 28 February 2020.

Counterparty Company Fixed basis Swap end date Nominal Fair Value
HSBC Farringdon Properties Limited* 1.60% 16/10/2020  20,000,000  150,197
HSBC Farringdon Properties Limited* 1.43% 10/10/2022  15,636,175  694,691
HSBC Farringdon Properties Limited 0.59% 10/10/2022  3,000,000  8,106
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.44% 10/10/2023  23,196,127  797,334
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.31% 23/03/2021  4,417,500  39,314
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.31% 23/03/2021  5,937,825  52,978
HSBC Trido Limited 0.57% 10/10/2023  10,000,000  31,640
HSBC Lexo Limited* 1.43% 10/10/2023  26,984,598  906,746
Santander ALP IOM Limited* 1.42% 06/12/2023  18,117,750  608,306
Santander ALP IOM Limited 0.70% 10/10/2023  5,000,000  40,311
Lloyds Basswood* 0.71% 02/08/2022  18,000,000  101,246

 150,289,975  3,430,869
Interest accrual  (183,731)

 3,247,138

The following tables set out the interest rate swap agreements at 28 February 2019.

Counterparty Company Fixed basis Swap end date Nominal Fair Value
HSBC Farringdon Properties Limited* 1.60% 16/10/2020  20,000,000  215,399
HSBC Farringdon Properties Limited* 1.43% 10/10/2022  15,636,175  203,856
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.44% 10/10/2023  23,577,333  251,587
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.31% 23/03/2021  4,560,000  27,807
HSBC Trido Limited* 1.31% 23/03/2021  6,130,725  37,638
HSBC Lexo Limited* 1.43% 10/10/2023  27,709,208  288,580
Santander ALP IOM Limited* 1.42% 06/12/2023  18,817,750  183,650

 116,431,191  1,208,517
Interest accrual  (84,220)

 1,124,297

Refer to note 23.1(b) for interest rate risk sensitivity analysis.

Derivative financial liabilities comprise of interest rate swaps and are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.

*Hedge accounting

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to
ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument.
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The Group enters into interest rate swaps that have similar critical terms as the hedged item, such as reference rate, reset dates, payment
dates, maturities and notional amount. The Group does not hedge 100% of its loans, therefore the hedged item is identified as a proportion
of the outstanding loans up to the notional amount of the swaps. As all critical terms matched during the year, the economic relationship was
100% effective.

Hedge ineffectiveness for interest rate swaps is assessed using the hypothetical derivative method. It may occur due to:
• the credit value/debit value adjustment on the interest rate swaps which is not matched by the loan; and
• differences in critical terms between the interest rate swaps and loans.
There was no ineffectiveness during the current or prior year in relation to the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges.

8. Trade and other receivables

Other receivables  2,485,665  3,247,344
- Non-Current  154,605  163,661
- Current (Refer to note 26 for further details)  2,331,060  3,083,683
Trade receivables  258,100  175,152
Prepayments  47,445  133,046
Other  14,830  9,632

 2,806,040  3,565,174

As at 28 February 2020, none of the receivables are past due and there are no material impairment provisions for expected credit losses. The
loss allowance on the Atlantic Property Investments Limited loan (Refer to note 26 for further details) is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. The decline in the share price has indicated an increase in credit risk and the recognition of a loss allowance of
GBP 600,000. This impairment has been calculated with reference to the weighted average JSE share price over the expected period it would
take Atlantic Leaf Property Investments Limited to sell its shares in Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited. The expected period is based on the
trading volume of the shares of Atlantic Leaf Limited on the JSE up to 28 February 2020.

Trade receivables aging at year end was as follows:

0 to 30 days  188,303  95,203
31 to 60 days  43,565  78,771
61 to 180 days  26,232  1,178
180 to 360 days   -    -  

 258,100  175,152

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances  26,157,994  12,597,553

10. Stated capital

Issued and fully paid 28 February 2020 28 February 2019
Number of

ordinary shares
Net amount
after costs

Number of
ordinary shares

Net amount
after costs

At the beginning of the year  188,976,628  198,467,699  188,976,628  198,467,699

At the end of the year  188,976,628  198,467,699  188,976,628  198,467,699

The ordinary shares are at no par value and each confers on the holder, one voting right, right to dividend and right to an equal share in the
distribution of surplus of assets of the Company.

The unissued shares of 100,000,000 are under the control of the directors of the Company.
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11. Interest-bearing borrowings

Non-current  155,907,988  163,850,876
Current  6,537,330  6,296,381

 162,445,318  170,147,257

Non-current and current

Funder Name of borrower Interest rate
Facility end

date
Santander Bank

ALP IOM Limited  LIBOR + 2.15% 16/12/2023  25,592,949  26,508,409
HSBC Bank

Farringdon Properties Limited  LIBOR + 1.95% 10/10/2022  31,115,725  32,243,841
Farringdon Properties Limited  LIBOR + 1.95% 10/10/2022  8,100,422  15,000,000
Lexo Limited  LIBOR +2.10% 10/10/2023  26,783,374  27,457,887
Trido Limited  LIBOR +2.10% 10/10/2023  23,268,586  23,820,102
Trido Limited  LIBOR +2.10% 10/10/2023  14,999,996  15,000,000
Trido Limited  LIBOR + 1.60% 22/03/2021  5,855,073  6,029,234
Trido Limited  LIBOR + 1.70% 22/03/2021  7,845,483  8,081,082
Basswood Limited  LIBOR +1.80% 02/08/2022  17,848,664   -  

AX Markets underwritten through
Interactive Brokers LLC Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited  0.99% * N/A  1,035,046  1,189,307

 162,445,318  155,329,862
* This is a variable rate

Fixed rate loans

Funder Name of borrower Interest rate
Facility end

date
Non-current and current
Aviva Commercial Finance Limited Hyder Limited 2.15% 25/11/2021   -   14,817,395

Total variable and fixed  162,445,318  170,147,257
The Group had undrawn facilities at year end of GBP 1,599,250 (2019 : GBP 0).

Interest costs may increase or decrease as a result of changes in the interest rates. Debt facilities have been hedged using interest rate swap
agreements as per note 7. The weighted average floating rates were at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.99% (2019 : 2.02%). Refer to note 23.1(b) for
details on Group interest rate risk management.

Transaction costs capitalised to the cost of debt that are amortised over the term of the loan amounted to GBP 302,001 in the current
financial year (2019 : GBP 1,713,844).

Investment properties have been pledged to secure borrowings. Refer to note 4.

Borrowing powers
The borrowing capacity of the Company and its subsidiaries is unlimited in terms of their Memorandum of Incorporation.
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12. Lease Liability

IFRS 16 Lease liability recognised  16,015,392   -  
Interest  559,667   -  
Lease payments  (633,212)   -  
Balance at end of year  15,941,847   -  

Lease liabilities are due as follows:
Not later than one year  633,215   -  
Between one and five years  2,532,860   -  
After five years  12,775,772   -  

 15,941,847   -  

The Group recognised a lease liability as result of adopting IFRS 16 during the year. An incremental borrowing rate of 3.5% based on the
Groups cost of funding has been used in calculating the lease liability.

Contractual undiscounted cashflows are as follows:
Not later than one year  633,215   -  
Between one and five years  2,532,860   -  
After five years  41,037,297   -  
Total  44,203,372   -  

Reconciliation of lease commitments from IAS 17 to IFRS 16:
Operating lease commitments before discounting as at 1 March 2019  44,836,587   -  
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate  (28,821,195)   -  
Lease liability as at 1 March 2019  16,015,392   -  

13. Trade and other payables

Accruals  310,371  171,802
Rent received in advance  1,667,904  1,840,422
Trade payables  1,092,886  570,068
Value Added Tax  873,473  1,148,860
Accrued interest  642,006  664,698
Other  60,919  45,351

 4,647,559  4,441,201
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14. Net income

Net income is arrived at after taking into account the following items:

Directors' emoluments
- Directors fees  170,918  117,500

Operating lease charges
Premises   -   5,103

Direct operating expenses that did not generate rental income
Security  21,966  112,114
Insurance   -   42,656

 21,966  154,770
These relate to costs for vacant periods during the year at Brecon and Peterborough.

15. Investment income

Dividend income - listed investments  223,900  288,133
Dividend income - joint venture  619,000   -  
Interest on bank balances  41,539  44,545
Interest earned on loan facilities. Refer to note 26.  36,271  103,267

 920,710  435,945

Investment income is derived from financial assets as follows:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost  77,810  147,812
Financial assets measured at fair value  842,900  288,133

 920,710  435,945

16. Fair value adjustments

Fair value adjustments to investment properties (Note 4)  1,688,732  (5,531,705)
Fair value gain on investment properties  17,102,284  4,192,560
Fair value loss on investment properties  (15,413,552)  (9,724,265)
Straight line lease adjustments  (1,837,949)  (1,520,500)
Fair value adjustment on right of use asset  (129,260)   -  
Fair value adjustment on listed investments (Note 6)  (690,826)  (319,856)
Fair value adjustment on debt: IFRS9 Debt modification   -   (744,119)
Fair value adjustment on interest rate swaps  (84,355)  15,586
Fair value adjustment on asset held for sale (Note 5)  1,017,213  (1,017,213)

 (36,445)  (9,117,807)

17. Finance costs

Interest on loan facilities  5,532,904  5,022,978
Other interest  12,165  14,963
Interest on interest rate swaps  726,611  554,426
Interest on lease liability  559,667   -  

 6,831,347  5,592,367

Finance costs were derived from financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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18. Taxation

Non-Resident Landlord Tax  31,423  1,431,955
Withholding tax  47,307  61,487

 78,730  1,493,442

Corporate taxation
As a UK REIT, the Company does not pay UK direct taxes on the income and gains from its qualifying UK Property Rental Business. Instead,
shareholders are broadly taxed on the distributions they receive as if they held the property directly by way of a UK withholding tax, generally
at a rate of 20%. Residual income and gains that aren’t derived from the Company’s Property Rental Business are subject to corporate tax at
the company level, currently at a rate of 19%. Distributions of such residual profits and gains are not subject to a UK withholding tax.

The tax charge recognised in the year is comprised entirely of prior adjustments related to the final 2019 non-resident landlord tax returns
submitted during the year. There is no tax charge relating to income derived in the year ended 28 February 2020.

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporate tax in the UK. The differences are explained below:

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation  20,672,698

Theoretical tax at UK corporate tax rate of 19%  3,927,813
Prior period adjustments  31,423
REIT exempt income  (4,113,339)
Non-taxable items  115,648
Residual losses  69,878
Total tax charge  31,423

Non taxable items include income and gains that are not taxable for corporate tax purposes other than property rental income exempt from
UK corporate tax in accordance with Part 12 of CTA 2010.

REIT exempt income includes property rental income that is exempt from UK corporate tax in accordance with Part 12 of CTA 2010.

40



ATLANTIC LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED
(Registration Number 128426)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Figures in GBP 2020 2019

Tax reconciliation for the year ended 28 February 2019

Normal taxation rate 20.00%

Profit before tax  10,676,522

Tax calculated at the rate of 20%  2,135,304
Income not subject to tax  (256,409)
 - Fair value movements  1,763,948
 - Income taxed at 0%  (1,648,202)
 - Realised profit on disposal  (75,614)
 - Other  (296,541)
Non-deductible expenses  93,319
 - Legal and professional costs  30,442
 - Transaction costs  29,159
 - Finance costs  24,281
 - Other  9,437
Prior period adjustments ¹  (305,177)
Tax loss utilised  (124,398)
Capital allowances  (110,684)
Non-resident landlord tax  1,431,955

¹ Majority of prior period adjustments relate to capital allowances not previously recognised.

Recognition of tax for the year
Balance at beginning of the year  613,862  842,464
Tax charge for the year  78,730  1,493,442
Tax paid  (860,130)  (1,722,044)
Balance at year end  (167,538)  613,862

19. Earnings and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 28 February 2020 is based on the income attributable to ordinary equity
holders of GBP 20,593,968 (2019 : GBP 9,183,080) and the weighted average of 188,976,628 (2019 : 188,976,628) ordinary shares in issue
during the year. The Company has no dilutionary instruments in issue.
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20. Headline and adjusted headline earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent  20,593,968  9,183,080
Fair value adjustments to investment properties  278,477  7,052,205
Profit on disposal of investment property and subsidiary  (4,280,321)  (249,724)
Fair value adjustments to properties in associates   -   348,229
Loss on disposal of investment properties in joint venture  1,390,704   -  
Fair value adjustment on asset held for sale  (1,017,213)  1,017,213
Headline earnings  16,965,615  17,351,003
Add back:
Fair value adjustments to listed investments  690,826  319,856
Net profit on disposal of investment properties, subsidiary and joint
venture  2,889,617  249,724
Straight line lease income adjustment *  (1,395,122)  (1,186,611)
Impairment recognised on APIL loan  600,000   -  
Fair Value adjustment on interest rate swaps  84,355   -  
Adjusted for once-off costs:
IFRS 9 Fair Value Adjustment on debt modification (net of Swap
Realisation)   -   728,533
Restructuring costs  82,109  129,246
Adjusted headline earnings  19,917,400  17,591,751

Headline and diluted headline earnings per share (GBP pence)  8.98  9.18
Adjusted headline and diluted headline earnings per share (GBP pence)  10.54  9.31

*Straight line lease adjustments relating specifically to the contractual rental escalations are excluded from Adjusted Headline Earnings.
Straight- line lease adjustments on lease incentives such as the rent-free periods are not excluded from Adjusted Headline Earnings.

The calculation of headline and adjusted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year of 188,976,628 (2019 : 188,976,628).
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21. Cash generated from operating activities

Profit before tax  20,672,698  10,676,522
Adjustments for:
Interest expense  6,831,347  5,592,367
Foreign exchange loss  10,281  (100,252)
Interest income  (77,810)  (147,812)
Dividend income  (842,900)  (288,133)
Fair value gain on investment properties  149,217  7,052,205
Fair value adjustment to listed investments  690,826  319,856
Fair value adjustment on assets held for sale  (1,017,213)  1,017,213
Impairment recognised on APIL loan  600,000   -  
Fair value adjustment - Right of use asset  129,260   -  
Fair value gain on derivatives  84,355   -  
Fair value adjustment on refinancing loans   -   744,119
Net profit on sale of investment property, subsidiary and joint venture  (2,889,617)  (249,724)
Profit on sale of listed investments   -   (128,344)
Equity accounted profit   -   (2,663,929)
Movements in straight-lining lease balance  (1,837,949)  (1,520,500)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes  22,502,495  20,303,588
Working capital changes
Decrease in trade and other receivables  159,128  345,320
Increase in trade and other payables  71,696  93,561
Cash generated from operating activities  22,733,319  20,742,469

21.1 Dividends paid to shareholders

Dividends declared during the year  17,291,361  17,480,338

21.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Below is a reconciliation of the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, which includes both cash and non-cash charges. Liabilities
from financing are those classified or will be classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash from financing as per interest
bearing borrowing in note 11.

 Interest Bearing borrowings
At Beginning of the Year  170,147,257  153,043,175
Proceeds from borrowings  17,764,638  15,834,744
Repayment of borrowings  (12,160,883)   -  
Disposal of subsidiary  (13,823,614)   -  
Non cash items:
Amortising Costs capitalised  517,920  525,219
Fair value adjustment - IFRS 9 Debt Modification on Refinance   -   744,119
Balance at end of year  162,445,318  170,147,257
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21.3 Disposal of subsidiary

On 28 February 2020 the Group disposed of Hyder Limited a wholly owned subsidiary.

Details of the disposal are as follows:
Investment property  33,993,700
Cash and cash equivalents  363,773
Repayment of borrowings  (13,823,614)
Sundry creditors  (323,986)

 20,209,873
Cash  (363,773)
Consideration received  19,846,100

22. Financial instruments by category

2020

Financial assets
measured at

amortised cost

Fair value
through profit

or loss
mandatory Total

Financial assets
Listed investments   -    -    -   2,926,786  2,926,786
Trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments)   -   2,758,595   -   2,758,595
Cash and cash equivalents   -    -   26,157,994   -   26,157,994

  -    -   28,916,589  2,926,786  31,843,375

Financial
liabilities

amortised cost

Fair value
through profit
or loss - held

for trading Total
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (excluding
rental received in advance and taxes)   -   2,106,182   -   2,106,182
Interest-bearing borrowings   -   162,445,318   -   162,445,318
Derivative financial instruments   -    -   3,430,869  3,430,869

  -   164,551,500  3,430,869  167,982,369
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2019

Financial assets
measured at

amortised cost

Fair value
through profit

or loss
mandatory Total

Financial assets
Listed investments   -    -    -   3,617,612  3,617,612
Trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments)   -    -   3,432,128   -   3,432,128
Cash and cash equivalents   -    -   12,597,553   -   12,597,553

  -    -   16,029,681  3,617,612  19,647,293

Financial
liabilities

amortised cost

Fair value
through profit
or loss - held

for trading Total
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (excluding
rental received in advance and taxes)   -   1,451,919   -   1,451,919
Interest-bearing borrowings   -   170,147,257   -   170,147,257
Derivative financial instruments   -    -   1,208,517  1,208,517

  -   171,599,176  1,208,517  172,807,693

Gains/(losses) from the above categories of financial assets are disclosed as follows:
• Listed investments - income from listed investments is included in investment income. Profit/(loss) on disposal of listed investments is
disclosed separately in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
• Trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents - interest income is included in investment income.
• Derivative financial instruments - fair value gains/(losses) are included in fair value adjustments and other comprehensive income.

23. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of shareholder value. Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities, but it is
managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of
risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability.

The Board of Directors has set up a separate Risk Committee and Audit Committee to assist the Board in identifying and evaluating financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units to assist in :

• The safeguarding of the Group’s assets;
• The appropriateness and effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls;
• The quality and integrity of financial reporting and disclosures, and the risks related thereto;
• The Group’s compliance with all applicable legal, regulatory and accounting requirements;
• An assessment of the Group's service providers; and
• An assessment of the adequacy or otherwise of the insurance cover taken out by the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk and investing excess liquidity. These policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and in the
Group's activities.

Key financial risk management reports are produced quarterly on a Group level and provided to the key management personnel in the Group.

Financial Risk Factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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23.1 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The
Group’s market risks arise from open positions in:
(a) foreign currencies, and
(b) interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
to the extent that these are exposed to general and specific market movements. Management sets guidelines on the exposure to currency
and interest rate risk that may be accepted, which are monitored on a monthly basis (see details below). However, the use of this approach
does not prevent losses outside of these guidelines in the event of more significant market movements.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding all other factors constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for example, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign
currency rates.

(a) Currency risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group’s financial assets and liabilities, and those of its
underlying subsidiaries are predominantly denominated in GBP which is the Group’s functional currency.

The Group has financial assets and liabilities denominated in Euro (“EUR”), US Dollar ("USD") and South African Rand (“ZAR”).

Currency profile
The currency profile of the Group and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:
Financial assets
GBP  30,939,780  18,477,510
EUR  846,778  1,112,675
ZAR  56,817  57,108

 31,843,375  19,647,293

Prepayments amounting to GBP 47,445 (2019 : GBP 133,046) are excluded from the financial assets as at 28 February 2020.

Financial liabilities
GBP  166,947,323  171,346,826
USD  -  4,156
EUR  1,035,046  1,455,571
ZAR  -  1,133

 167,982,369  172,807,686

The Group is not exposed to material changes in foreign exchange rates and equity indices.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk principally arises from long-term borrowings. Refer to note 11. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group has no significant exposure to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s policy is to fix the interest rate on a portion of its interest bearing borrowings. To manage this, the Group enters into interest
rate swaps in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed upon notional principal amount. At 28 February 2020, after taking into account the effect of interest
rate swaps, 89% (2019 : 77%) of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. Trade receivables and trade payables are interest free
and with a term of less than one year, so it is assumed that there is no interest rate risk associated with these financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s interest rate risk is monitored by the Group’s management on a monthly basis. The interest rate risk policy is approved annually
by the Board of Directors. Management analyses the Group’s interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated,
taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing sources. Based on these scenarios, the Group
calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift. The scenarios are run only for liabilities that represent the major
interest- bearing positions.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The impact of the change in interest rate (+/– 50 basis points) on profit before tax is as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents  96,169  93,951
Receivable from APIL  26,976  15,790
Borrowings  159,484  276,373

(c) Price risk
The Group is exposed to securities price risk which arises from listed investments held by the Group for which prices in the future are
uncertain.

Where listed investments are denominated in currencies other than the GBP, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then
converted into GBP, will also fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the Group’s statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year due to a
possible change in security prices, with all variables held constant is indicated below.

If security prices had been 25% (2019: 5%) higher/lower, the Group’s post tax profit for the year would have increased/decreased by
approximately GBP 731,697 (2019: GBP 180,881) as a result of changes in fair value of the listed investments.

(d) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents held at banks, trade receivables, including rental receivables from lessees. Credit risk is
managed on a Group basis and the group assigns internal credit ratings to all material tenants. Based on the credit rating assigned, the group
reviews a credit risk exposure matrix showing the groups maximum acceptable rental income exposure to individual tenants. The overall
exposure of the Group to tenant risks are subject to a quarterly review.

In order to minimise any possible risks relating to cash, surplus funds can only be invested with investment grade banks.

The Company has guaranteed the payment obligations of a loan of GBP 5.6 million by Investec Limited to Atlantic Property Investments
Limited. The loan is repayable in September 2022. The value of the guarantee is estimated to be insignificant as no payments are expected to
be made under the guarantee to Investec and ongoing covenant requirements are being met

Maximum exposure to credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents  26,157,994  12,597,553
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)  2,758,595  3,432,128
Guarantee  5,600,000  5,890,000

 34,516,589  21,919,681
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(e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle their obligations in full as they fall due
or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous. The Group manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future
commitments, credit facilities and interest rates so as to balance the Group’s exposure to interest rate and refinancing risk.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis by management and is reviewed quarterly by the Board of Directors. A summary
table with maturity of financial assets and liabilities presented below is derived from managerial reports at Group level. The amounts
disclosed in the tables below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Undiscounted cash flows in respect of balances due within 12
months generally equal their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Refer to credit risk note above with regards to the guarantee payment obligations.

Management constantly reviews the liquidity risk of the Group which includes the long term repayment profile of the bank borrowings. The
Group plans to fund these payments in the future by refinancing the debt. Management are in constant communication with existing lenders
regarding their appetite to continue to provide funding after the forecasted repayments dates.

The maturity analysis of financial instruments as at 28 February 2020 is as follows:

2020
Less than 1

year
Between 1 and 5

years Over 5 years  Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  26,157,994  -  -  26,157,994
Listed securities  2,926,786  -  -  2,926,786
Trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments)  2,603,990  -  154,605  2,758,595

 31,688,770  -  154,605  31,843,375
Liabilities
Bank borrowings (inclusive of expected future interest
payments)  8,525,539  168,377,006  -  176,902,545
Derivative financial instruments (expected future
interest payments)  711,955  1,452,501  -  2,164,456
Lease liability (note 12)  633,215  2,532,860  12,775,772  15,941,847
Trade and other payables:
- Trade and other payables  1,153,805  -  -  1,153,805
- Accruals  310,371  -  -  310,371
Guarantees  5,600,000  -  -  5,600,000

 16,934,885  172,362,367  12,775,772  202,073,024
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The maturity analysis of financial instruments as at 28 February 2019 is as follows:

2019
Less than 1

year
Between 1 and 5

years Over 5 years  Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  12,597,553  -  -  12,597,553
Listed securities  3,617,612  -  -  3,617,612
Trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments)  3,254,929  13,538  163,661  3,432,128

 19,470,094  13,538  163,661  19,647,293
Liabilities
Bank borrowings (inclusive of expected future interest
payments)  9,905,592  179,686,079  -  189,591,671
Derivative financial instruments (expected future
interest payments)  854,014  2,638,989  -  3,493,003
Trade and other payables:
- Trade payables  615,419  -  -  615,419
- Accruals  171,802  -  -  171,802
Guarantees  5,890,000  -  -  5,890,000

 17,436,827  182,325,068  -  199,761,895

23.2 Capital risk management

The gearing ratio is as follows:
Total borrowings (Note 11)  162,445,318  170,147,257
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)  (26,157,994)  (12,597,553)
Net debt  136,287,324  157,549,704

Total investment assets excluding right of use asset  337,851,786  355,527,968

Loan to value ratio 40% 44%

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or return capital to
shareholders. To reduce debt, the Group can issue new shares or sell assets.

The Group strategy is to maintain a loan to value ("LTV") ratio that ensures the property performance is translated into an enhanced return to
shareholders, while at the same time ensuring that it will be able to continue as a going concern through changing market conditions. The
directors are of the opinion that an LTV ratio (excluding cash and cash equivalents) of 50%, in respect of secured external borrowings is an
appropriate target for the Group.
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24. Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments and investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined, based on the inputs used as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

2020  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3
 Total fair

value
Assets and liabilities
Investment properties  -  -  350,866,859  350,866,859
Listed securities  2,926,786  -  -  2,926,786
Derivative financial liabilities  -  (3,430,869)  -  (3,430,869)

2019  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3
 Total fair

value
Assets and liabilities
Investment properties  -  -  328,910,000  328,910,000
Asset held for sale  -  23,000,356  -  23,000,356
Listed securities  3,617,612  -  -  3,617,612
Derivative financial liabilities  -  (1,208,517)  -  (1,208,517)

Significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
There have been no significant transfers between levels during the year under review. The assets held for sale in the prior year were
recognised at fair value less costs to sell.

Unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs for Level 3 investment properties are disclosed in note 4.
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25. Segment report

The Group is focused on investment properties, which are located in the United Kingdom. Each segment derives its revenue from the rental
of investment properties.

During the financial year, revenues from a single customer within the industrial segment amounted to GBP 8,565,006 (2019: GBP 8,719,906),
this equates to more than 10% of the Group's revenues.

2020  Industrial  Office
 Retail

Warehouse
 Unallocated

items Total
Statement of profit or loss
Operating income  19,967,262  5,623,682  239,362  (1,489,862)  24,340,444
Other income and Foreign exchange   -    -   619,000  291,429  910,429
Net profit on disposal of investment properties and
joint venture  4,313,263   -   (1,423,646)   -   2,889,617
Fair value adjustments - investment property  1,994,190  (2,010,872)  (132,535)   -   (149,217)
Fair value adjustments - Right of use asset  (129,260)   -    -    -   (129,260)
Fair value - asset held for sale  183,068   -   834,145   -   1,017,213
Fair value - listed investments   -    -    -  (690,826)  (690,826)
Fair value - Interest rate swaps  (84,353)   -    -    -   (84,353)
Interest expense  (5,290,026)  (1,460,483)  (80,838)   -   (6,831,347)
Impairment of APIL loan   -    -    -   (600,000)  (600,000)
Income tax  (54,109)  8,864  13,822  (47,307)  (78,730)

Adjusted headline earnings  17,800,382  3,867,700  (618,479)  (1,132,203)  19,917,400

Operating income includes:
Segment revenue  22,923,203  6,064,817  254,129   -   29,242,149

Statement of financial position
Additions to investment property (Note 4)  40,457,852   -    -    -   40,457,852
Total assets  275,139,958  71,635,000  4,350,000  31,800,259  382,925,217
Total borrowings  145,340,452  13,690,027  2,379,791  1,035,048  162,445,318

Reconciliation of unallocated items
Statement of profit or loss
1. Dividends on listed investments, foreign exchange and other investment income
2. Fair value loss on the listed portfolio.

Statement of financial position
3. The unallocated item under total assets is made up as follows:

(GPB '000's)
Listed investments  2,927
Loan receivable from APIL  2,331
Cash and cash equivalents  26,158
Other receivable  217
Tax receivable  167

 31,800

4. Interest-bearing debt that originated through the broker for the purchase of the listed investments.
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2019  Industrial  Office
 Retail

Warehouse
 Unallocated

items Total
Statement of profit or loss
Operating income  17,214,302  5,335,011  150,761  (1,032,132)  21,667,942
Equity accounted profit (net of taxation)  722,527   -   1,941,402   -   2,663,929
Other income and Foreign exchange   -    -    -   676,757  676,757
Profit on disposal of investments  249,724   -    -   128,344  378,070
Fair value adjustments - investment property  (3,168,569)  (2,373,636)  (1,510,000)   -   (7,052,205)
Fair value adjustments - debt refinancing (net swaps)  (439,912)  (286,986)  (1,635)   -   (728,533)
Fair value - asset held for sale  (183,068)   -   (834,145)   -   (1,017,213)
Fair value - listed investments   -    -    -   (319,856)  (319,856)
Interest expense  (4,176,152)  (1,307,386)  (93,866)  (14,963)  (5,592,367)
Income tax  (927,340)  (334,652)  (169,863)  (61,587)  (1,493,442)

Adjusted headline earnings  11,821,149  3,651,281  2,293,658  (174,337)  17,591,751

Operating income includes:
Segment revenue  20,762,427  5,762,187  335,391   -   26,860,005

Statement of financial position
Additions to investment property  15,969,982   -    -    -   15,969,982
Total assets  256,984,186  73,330,000  22,012,100  19,364,409  371,690,695
Total borrowings  127,363,738  39,130,099  2,464,113  1,189,307  170,147,257

Total assets include:
Assets held for sale  5,288,255   -   17,712,101   -   23,000,356

Reconciliation of unallocated items
Statement of profit or loss
1. Dividends on listed investments, foreign exchange and other investment income
2. Profit on disposal of listed investments.
3. Fair value gain on the listed portfolio.
4. Interest on the share trading facility of GBP 1.2 million (2018: GBP 2.8 million).
5. Withholding tax in Atlantic Leaf.

Statement of financial position
6. The unallocated item under total assets is made up as follows:

(GPB '000's)
Listed investments  3,618
Loan receivable from APIL  3,084
Cash and cash equivalents  12,598
Other receivable  64

 19,364

7. Interest-bearing debt that originated through the broker for the purchase of the listed investments.
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26. Related parties

Relationships:
Subsidiaries: ALF Guernsey Limited Guernsey 100 % 100 %

ALP Guernsey Limited Guernsey 100 % 100 %
ALF IOM Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
ALP IOM Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
Austen Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
Farringdon Properties Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
Wincar Property Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Winex Property Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Winpaign Property Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Wintel Property Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Winup Property Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Lexo Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
Trido Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %
Hyder Limited Isle of Man 0 % 100 %
SPCP Group lll LOPD 14, Ltd British Virgin Islands 100 % 100 %
Basswood Limited Isle of Man 100 % 100 %

All the subsidiaries are either directly or indirectly engaged in real estate activities.

Directors:  Refer to Directors' Report

Amount receivable from Atlantic Property Investments Limited
Balance at beginning of year  3,083,683  3,340,272
Loan repayment during the year  (139,018)  (296,159)
Interest accrued during the year  36,271  103,267
Interest repayment during the year  (49,876)  (63,697)
Loan impairment  (600,000)   -  
Balance at end of year  2,331,060  3,083,683

Atlantic Property Investments Limited (“APIL”) is an unconsolidated entity wholly- owned by Martial Eagle Limited (“Martial Eagle”), the
management company. As per the Property Service Agreement (“PSA”), Martial Eagle has a right to subscribe for up to 5% of the shares in
Atlantic Leaf, which it has done via APIL. The loan to APIL is made to fund the acquisition of these shares and is made through a facility
agreement and bears interest at the weighted average funding rate of the Company for the last year. The Company has issued shares to APIL
in respect of each individual loan. Atlantic Leaf’s maximum exposure to loss from this arrangement amounts to the carrying amount of the
loan. Atlantic Leaf has also provided a guarantee to a third party in respect of finance provided to APIL. Refer to note 24 for details on the
guarantee.

Amount due to related party - Martial Eagle Limited
Balance at beginning of year  451,805  443,848
Transaction fees  488,751  83,150
Property service fee  1,797,120  1,812,556
Specific expenses  40,375  13,031
Payments  (2,158,353)  (1,900,780)
Balance at end of year  619,698  451,805

Per the property service agreement (''PSA''), a property service fee of 0.5% on the gross property assets, amongst others, was payable to
Martial Eagle Limited. Additionally, Martial Eagle Limited is entitled to transaction fees of 0.5% on the gross asset value, capped at GBP
150,000 per transaction, such fees being payable only until the Group’s assets reach GBP 500 million.
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These transactions are conducted at arm's length.

Professional fees paid to companies relating to directors of
subsidiaries  180,947  189,273

An amount of GBP 44,076 (2019: GBP 42,301) has been paid as directors fees and GBP 136,871 (2019: GBP 146,972) paid for professional
fees. None of these payments have been made to directors of Atlantic Leaf Properties Limited.

Fees paid relate to management, consulting, technical or other fees paid for such services rendered, directly or indirectly, including payments
to management companies for acting as directors of subsidiaries.

Directors fees
Peter Bacon  42,100  30,000
Cleopatra Folkes  25,250  21,000
Nicholas Winearls  25,000  22,000
Laurence Rapp  23,100  19,000
Rudolf Pretorius  29,550  25,500
Charles Butler  25,918   -  

 170,918  117,500

Non-executive directors' remuneration consists of short term employee benefits only.

27. Events after the reporting period

On 23 March 2020, as a result of Covid-19, the UK government announced new measures that put the UK in a state of lockdown. As at the
balance sheet date there was no market evidence of any immediate impact as a result of Covid-19, which was evidenced by ongoing sales in
the market, including the sale completed by Atlantic Leaf. The investment property valuations at the reporting date were applied by lenders
in their latest covenant calculations and as at 28 February 2020 there were no material rental arrears. The property valuers have also
indicated that they believe the valuations accurately reflect the property values at the time of the valuation and therefore Atlantic Leaf has
judged that this is a non-adjusting post balance sheet event.

Our Response
Following the recent escalation of UK governmental responses to Covid- 19 and the possible impact on the Group and its customers, the
Group has:
 - Enacted its business continuity plans
 - Stress tested its forecast cash position and its ability to continue as a going concern over the next 12 months
 - Suspended all acquisitions of investment properties
 - Drawn down on available RCF’s

Current impact on revenue collections between the balance sheet date and the reporting date
The Company collects rent quarterly in advance and at year end there were no material rental arrears. We have collected 90% of rent due
covering the period from March to June 2020, excluding a portion (10%) which has been agreed to be collected monthly instead of quarterly.
The remaining 10% of the rent remains due and we are currently working with those tenants to determine suitable payment terms. Overall,
this is a very positive outcome as the majority of rent due to the end of June has been collected and this further strengthens our cash
position.
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Cash flow forecast
The Group has performed additional stress testing of its cash flow forecast. When evaluating the cash position of the Group the directors
have considered the following risk factors:
1. The probability of a decrease in rental received from tenants
2. Operational expenses anticipated
3. Debt amortisations required to be paid
4. Debt maturities
5. Committed capex
6. Discretionary capex
7. Dividends or other equity payments
8. Debt repayments on the potential breach of a bank covenant
9. Payments relating to any guarantees

The following assumptions have been applied to the cash flow forecast:
 - All revenue over the period was stress tested by risk rating the Group’s tenants and applying a “Monte Carlo “simulation to create a
  probability distribution of the forecast rental collections.

 - Operational cash outflows including interest (of which 90% is at fixed interest rates) for the new financial year are forecast to be in line with
 current year.

 - There is no debt maturing in the financial year ending 28 February 2021 and scheduled debt amortisation payments for this year are
   approximately GBP 6,5 million. There is a small HSBC facility with a current balance outstanding of GBP 13,8m that is expiring on the   
 23rd March 2021. The facility forms part of the broader cross collateralised pool of assets pledged to HSBC. The total facility
 outstanding with HSBC is approximately GBP 118m and we expect to refinance this portion of the facility into the existing main HSBC
 facility. No additional capital contributions have been assumed for this facility.

 - The Company is within its loan covenants and has headroom in the interest cover and debt service cover ratios. All loan-to-value ratios are
   compliant with recent bank valuations carried out for the year ended February 2020 and the valuations for covenant purposes have been
  set for a least the next 12 months.

 - The Company benefits from long term fully repairing and insuring leases on the majority of its property portfolio and there are no material
 capex requirements forecast.

 - No new acquisitions of investment properties have been forecast.

A summarised cash position of the Group is as follows:
 - The Company is in a strong liquidity position and at year end holds cash of GBP 26 million and GBP 1.6 million of undrawn available
    facilities.
 - The Company should have sufficient cash resources under all of the scenario’s tested and even without any rental revenue received over

 the forecast period, the company will be able to fund its operational expenses with existing cash resources.

Whilst the company will be impacted by Covid-19, the current cash position of the company is strong, and the Board are comfortable that
there are sufficient resources to ensure that the company can continue as a going concern.
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